

Town of Simsbury

933 HOPMEADOW STREET

SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070

Watch the Open Space Meeting LIVE and rebroadcast on Comcast Channels 96, 1090, Frontier Channel 6071 and LIVE streamed or on-demand at www.simsburytv.org

OPEN SPACE COMMITTEE

Wednesday September 2, 2020 4:30 P.M.

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

Call to Order

- 1. Public Audience
- 2. Approval of Minutes
 - July 1, 2020 Meeting
 - July 17, 2020 Meeting
- 3. Updates (Oral Reports)
 - Parks and Open Space Master Plan
 - Status of Potential Disposition of Holcomb Street Parcel
 - Pollinator Pathway Program, Possible Grants
- 4. Policies/Policies Work Group
 - Natural Stewardship Policy
 - Disposition of Open Space Policy
 - Other

Adjourn

1	Open Space Commission
2	Wednesday, July 1, 2020
3	4:30PM- Via Zoom Video Conference
4	REGUALR MEETING MINUTES - DRAFT
5	
6	PRESENT: Eric Wellman, First Selectman, Margery Winters, Susan Masino, Timothy Walczak, Helen
7	Peterson, Bill Rice, David Bush
8	
9	ALSO PRESENT: Maria Capriola, Town Manager, Tom Tyburski, Director of Culture, Parks and Recreation,
10	Mike Glidden, Planning Director, Tom Fitzgerald, Management Specialist
11	
12	Absent: Anne Erickson
13	
14	Call to Order
15	Mr. Wellman called the meeting to order at 4:44PM; due to technical difficulties, the meeting start time
16	was slightly delayed.
17	
18	1.) Public Audience
19	Mr. Wellman read public comments that were submitted in advance of the meeting.
20	
21	Diane Nash commented to the disposition of Holcomb Street disposition stating that the land is public
22	land that benefits all and the sale would make it private land to the benefit of one. She also stated that
23	the unintended consequences of the sale, the precedent it sets, is what unites the opposition. Without
24	full disclosure, this single transaction will undermine policies and procedures for the disposition of open
25	space and undermine our trust in the operation of our government. With full disclosure of price, timing,
26	and impact, confidence would be restored in our policies and procedures as well as trust that rules are
27	applied, to all citizens, without favoritism.
28	
29	Ms. Nash urged the Commission to let their voice be heard to the BOS in defense of preservation and
30	protection of public land and rules governing its stewardship and disposition.
31	
32	2.) Approval of Minutes
33	Mr. Wellman made a motion to approve the March 4, 2020 minutes. The minutes passed as presented
34 35	unanimously.
36	Mr. Wellman made a motion to approve the June 2, 2020 minutes. The minutes passed as presented
37	unanimously.
38	,
39	
40	Updates
41	
42	Parks and Open Space Master Plan – Mr. Tyburski reported that an updated draft of the Parks and
43	Open Space Master Plan was received and it will be shared with the Commission as well as C.P.R. There
44	will be a joint meeting of the Open Space Commission and C.P.R. on Friday, July 17 th . Mr. Tyburski
45	requested that the document not be shared yet as it is still in draft form. Mr. Wellman questioned when

the document would be public. Mr. Tyburksi reported that it would be included in the packet for the joint July 17th meeting.

Status of Meadowood Referral— Mr. Glidden reported that the Meadowood Referral has made its way through all the land use commissions, all of which gave a positive referral. The Zoning Commission had a split vote and was unable to grant a positive referral. It is on the agenda for tomorrow's Culture, Parks and Recreation meeting.

Mr. Bush questioned the reasoning as to why zoning was a split vote. Mr. Glidden stated that three of the members felt there was a need for more affordable housing in the town, the other three members saw the value of the preservation in the value of the land.

Ms. Masino stated that it is her understanding that the town owns 24 acres outright (currently slated as athletic fields) as part of Meadowood, that's a reserved piece of the property so if we had a different vision for that, such as affordable housing, there is nothing precluding still having that goal for the property and there may be other affordable housing options that come up in between. She also stated that affordable housing makes the most sense when it is near transportation, services and jobs.

Status of Potential Disposition of Holcomb Street Parcel– Mr. Glidden reported that the Board of Selectmen opened the public hearing on this matter and due to the high number of public comments received they decided to keep the public hearing open until their next meeting August 10, 2020.

Mr. Bush questioned if there was a general theme to the feedback received. Mr. Wellman stated there was feedback as far as process and making sure they are being as transparent as possible. Around two dozen letters were received that were against the disposition.

Pollinator Pathway Program Possible Grants— Ms. Masino reported that one of the promising options is a matching grant through sustainable CT. Although they originally ran out of money, they are going to be re-launching the program. The grants are up to 30K each and it is an easy application, we would also get points on our sustainable CT program. The grants are flexible, could be for public education, planting the pollinator garden, paying experts for advice, renting items, etc.

3.) Policies/Policies Work Group

- a. Natural Stewardship Policy
- b. Disposition of Open Space Policy
- c. Other

Ms. Masino provided the Commission with a draft version of "A Natural Forest Ecosystem: Best Practice for Natural Stewardship". She shared that she has been trying to pull together resources for how we should take care of a natural area, when intervention is necessary and how those decisions should be made.

 Ms. Masino spoke to the work on West Mt. Road related to Masaco State Forest, it's the major east-west wildlife corridor that was recognized when Ethel Walker Woods was preserved. It's been identified as the eastern wild way, a major corridor which goes up the east coast which is important to protect for bio-diversity and wildlife. There is a severe project going on that people were upset about, DEEP came out and there is a forum this evening. Ms. Masino stated there has been a shifting reason for their project and if people want more information, she would recommend people go to the website to check it out. Mr. Bush questioned if it is a local or state project. Ms. Masino said it is a state project.

Mr. Wellman spoke to DEEP last week and they said they would put a temporary pause on the work based on all the comments and feedback received.

ADJOURN

101 Mr. Bush made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Ms. Winters. All voted in favor. Motion passed. Meeting adjourned at 5:23pm.

- 104 Respectfully submitted,
- 105 Heather Taylor
- 106 Commission Clerk

TOWN OF SIMSBURY – CULTURE, PARKS, AND RECREATION COMMISSION and OPEN SPACE COMMISSION JOINT MEETING

Subject to Vote of Approval – Special Meeting Minutes – Friday, July 17, 2020 – 4 pages

Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 10:35 a.m. by Eric Wellman, Chairman of the Open Space Committee via Zoom video conference. Culture, Parks and Recreation Commission members who were present included David Bush, Kelly Kearney, Gerry Wetjen, Rachel Wellman, Sarah Cramer, and Danielle Celli. Open Space Commission members who were present included Eric Wellman, David Bush, Margery Winters, Helen Peterson, Susan Masino, and Tim Walczak. The C. P. & R. Director, Tom Tyburski, Town Manager, Maria Capriola, and Zoning Compliance Officer, Tom Hazel, were also in attendance.

Others in attendance: Dan Biggs of Weston & Sampson

Public Audience:

None.

Presentation and Discussion of Draft Parks and Open Space Master Plan

Mr. Biggs shared that the hope is to take any last comments and roll them into the final draft and then put together the final presentation.

Ms. Peterson commented that she felt that the consulting group had a very good grasp on the fact that this is a citizen driven document and they did a good job of indicating that in their commentary. Ms. Peterson stated that there was reference to an index but the index was not there. She also stated that on page four there was reference to the management plans that the Town had ordered back in 2014-2015, however those documents should be considered outdated and were not acted upon for several reasons. Ms. Peterson also commented that in the document it discusses how important the advisory issue of the C.P.R. Commission is to the Parks and Rec Department as well as to the Board of Selectmen, however, she found no reference to the Open Space Committee and its importance. She believes somewhere in the document it should be recognized that the Open Space Committee must be advisory to the Town departments just as the C.P.R. Commission is to the Parks and Rec Department.

Ms. Masino commented that she has been looking into it and does think there is quite a bit that they can do with volunteers and citizens as long as they have some good guidelines. One specific comment she had was that on page 70, Ethel Walker Woods is not on the map. She also stated that there is a comment in the plan about returning open space pathways to neighborhoods or to adjacent neighbors, however, she doesn't believe anyone suggested that during the process and would like to refer back to comments made at previous meetings as to the value of these little spaces. Ms. Masino also brought up the pump track, stating that she is hesitant to start adding more items to the Town's maintenance roster. One thing she is concerned about is that she did send numerous documents such as manuals, policies, etc and she does not see that in the plan. Mr. Tyburski commented that the appendices were not uploaded to the Town's website, however the email the Committee received a few weeks ago did have a link for the appendices.

Ms. Masino also discussed the carbon programs listed on page 102, stating that there are good carbon programs and not so good carbon programs and that is something that should carefully be considered. There are a couple properties in Town that could be put in a carbon program, such as the corridor that connects the Eastern Wild Way, which would basically bring the Town money for 20 years, so she feels that that would be a valid conversation to have.

Ms. Winters commented that not all neighborhoods have homeowner's associations and doesn't think there is anyway for the Town to have ultimate oversight, so she would feel very reluctant in turning those areas over to the maintenance of a HOA. Ms. Winters also stated that she feels that the document is very good for recreation of our open space but it is not the only purpose of our open space, she is not sure there was enough emphasis on the fact that the citizens in their responses talked about the use of open space for passive recreation.

Mr. Kearney commented relative to the walking paths and the maintenance, stating that well maintained paths lead to greater use, he believes we need to make that a priority, less they become overgrown and underutilized. Mr. Kearney stated that once this final document is adopted, it needs to have structure so that long after we are gone and have moved on, others can follow the plan itself and relate to the structure that was set-up. Mr. Kearney stated that one of the things that concerns him the most is having a document that doesn't get turned into a living breathing plan, one of the things he hopes to walk away with is specific actionable items.

Ms. Masino shared Mr. Kearney's sentiments that this be a living document that is a hub for information.

Mr. Biggs acknowledged the fact that there does need to be a dedicated library for that information, although it may not be appendices as noted, it has been acknowledged that there is a need to have these documents brought forward for others to access them.

Mr. Wellman asked Mr. Biggs if parking was generally something he found that people complained about or if there is some unique opportunity that Simsbury has.

Mr. Biggs stated that there are always complaints of not enough parking so it is a constant balance between the desire for more parking vs recommendation to have better walking/biking access to a park facility or between facilities to quasi to discourage one stop parking and to encourage other uses to be active to get to the park. Mr. Biggs stated that it is a constant struggle on every park plan.

Mr. Wellman stated that if we are going to spend money on parking, he would like to focus on ADA and accessibility. Mr. Wellman shared his sentiments that he appreciates that sprinkled throughout the document is the mention of pollinators, native plants and grasses that require less maintenance, as well as protecting habitats. Pollinators are one of the priorities that have risen for the Board of Selectmen. Mr. Wellman also commented that he was surprised to see what Simsbury spends per capita on parks/open space versus towns we like to compare ourselves to. He stated that this is a testament to Mr. Tyburski and his team and what they do with the limited amount of resources. Mr. Wellman stated that he is going to need the help of the group, along with the BOS to have subsequent conversations on how we fund these things that are priorities.

Mr. Tyburski stated that many neighborhood trails are falling apart and with Covid-19, these trails become even more important as school access paths. He stated that looking forward it is important to address these paths.

Mr. Bush commented that under Belden Forest, Ethel Walker Woods and Onion Mountain, there are recommendations regarding either determining which trails are redundant, which should be abandoned or moved, he stated he would appreciate specific examples or recommendations under Weston & Sampson's expertise so that as funding comes in we would be able to look back on the document and state that it was a specific recommendation and needs funding.

Mr. Bush shared Ms. Masino's sentiments that he is not aware of anybody that asked for a pump track, stating that the Town has enough to maintain as it is and from a liability standpoint that is a large mistake. His standpoint is that that should not be part of the document.

Mr. Tyburski commented that the pump track recommendation came from the focus group meetings and the survey that went out to the Town, although specific locations were not discussed.

Mr. Bush also stated that under Part Ten, Section 1.4.1, maintenance standards are discussed, the more specific we could be the better so that we can use those to request funding.

Mr. Biggs stated that there are "standards" for quality of maintenance but there is a lot of variability on how they would be enacted to their staffing or funding.

Mr. Kearney questioned if those standards are typically included in documents such as this.

Mr. Biggs commented that usually they are a staff document supplement to share with the Town's staff to be guidance for them. Once it is put in a document and goes out to the public, the expectations are set and we don't want the towns to struggle or fail with not being able to meet those results.

Ms. Cramer commented that when you look at what our Town is spending compared to other municipalities, what we can do is one thing but we want to know what we could be or should be doing.

Mr. Biggs stated that the one thing he would caution on the numbers comparing other municipalities is that if a municipality were to contract a lot of their work compared to doing it in house, you may see increased costs as a result.

Mr. Tyburski stated that they are operating at a deficit compared to what many of the comparable towns are.

Ms. Celli commented that she was also surprised on the Town's spending compared to other towns versus how much we use them. She questioned if Memorial Pool and the splash pad were a priority.

Mr. Tyburski stated that Memorial Pool is over 60 years old and the pool mechanics are at the end of their life, along with many other things. The Town will need to make a major decision in the next few years on the viability of that facility, which is why it is high priority, we are looking at either a shut down or renovation.

Mr. Kearney asked if Section 10 - Goals and Action Plan, are prioritized in order of importance. Mr. Biggs stated that the items are not prioritized. Mr. Kearney asked when the document goes to the BOS will the items be prioritized. Mr. Biggs stated that there is a page that gives a prioritization of all of the goals and indicates which of the goals should be started first. Mr. Kearney stated that he would expect two things, a prioritized list of action items and the low hanging fruit from an existing resource standpoint.

Mr. Wellman stated that he looks forward to the partnership with Parks & Rec and being able to guide on some of those recommendations as we head into budget season.

Ms. Masino stated that looking back at the RFP, one of the goals of this was to take care of the things that we have so dealing with any problems that are progressive is a priority and also any actions that will save us money would be a priority.

Mr. Tyburski urged the committees to get him any final comments so the document can be finalized and brought before the BOS

Adjourn

Mr. Bush made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Ms. Winters seconded the motion. All were in favor. The meeting was adjourned at 11:36 a.m.

Respectfully submitted, Heather Taylor, Commission Clerk